1959

International Brotherhood of Teamsters, Chauffeurs and Helpers of America, Local Unions No. 222 and No 976 v. Industrial Commission of the State of Utah et al : Brief of Petitioner

Utah Supreme Court

STATEMENT OF CASE

On August 11, 1958, Teamsters Joint Council 38, covering the locals in the Sacramento Valley of California, went on strike against the employers of the Cali-

ifornia Trucking Association (C.T.A.). The strike was limited to certain "terminal" employees in that council, specifically excluding its line driver and clerical employees. The terminal employees' grievance was that their wage rates were less than was being paid their neighbor locals in the Oakland area, which fact had long been a source of irritation to the terminal employee members of the locals of Joint Council 38. The wage differential between the two areas was considerable and the C.T.A. firmly resisted doing anything about the wage discrimination.

Prior to the strike, Joint Council 38 had been warned by the employers of C.T.A., who also belonged to the Western Empire Operators Association covering the 11 western states, that if the Council refused to accept a proposal substantially the same as one which had been submitted to them on May 27, and went on strike, the Western Empire Operators Association would retaliate by shutting down operations over the entire 11 western states area. So when Joint Council 38 struck, the threatened lockout immediately ensued, thus leaving unemployed the Utah applicants for unemployment compensation.

The negotiations in Joint Council 38 for terminal employees were entirely separate and apart and independent of the negotiations for terminal employees in all the other respective joint councils in the 11 western states, including Utah.

Each joint council was an autonomous, independent negotiating unit by itself with sole and complete authority and power to pursue its own respective negotiating objectives, free of any interference from any other joint council, association, or organization whatsoever. Thus, when Joint Council 38 struck, Joint Council 67 for Utah and Idaho was helpless to do anything about it, as was every other joint council, association, or organization.

Each bargaining unit had to bargain for its own master agreement and also for its own wage and hour agreements, the former having to do with certain working conditions and grievance procedures, and the latter having to do with wages, hours, and matters related thereto.

The record, although lengthy, and not uncomplicated, makes clear the autonomous nature of negotiations in Joint Council 38, as distinguished from the separate negotiations in Joint Council 67, and as further distinguished from the separate negotiations by the line drivers committee for line drivers only, thus emphasizing the controlling fact in the case that the strike in Joint Council 38 in no way involved the applicants who are here asking compensation for unemployment resulting from the 11 western states lockout, and therefore said applicants do not come within the ineligibility provisions of 34-4-5 (d) U.C.A., 1953. A statement of facts from the record follows. All italics signify our emphasis.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

Applicants are members of Locals 222 or 976 of the International Brotherhood of Teamsters. Some applicants are line drivers between cities and states and include "short and long line" drivers who operate as either single man drivers or sleeper cab drivers. These applicants are sometimes referred to as over-the-road, or line drivers. The applicants who are not line drivers are "terminal" employees who include local pick-up and delivery drivers, helpers, dockmen, warehousemen, checkers, power lift operators, hostlers, automotive maintenance and service employees (including lubricating operators, gas pump operators, washers, shop and yard clean-up men, stock parts room employees, tire service employees, tire rebuilders), office workers and such other employees not included in the line, or over-the-road, driver category. All of the employees in the latter grouping are sometimes referred to in the evidence as local pick-up and delivery employees, and sometimes as "terminal" employees, distinguishing this entire grouping from the line drivers. All of the line driver applicants are members of Local 222.

Line Driver Negotiations

Prior to 1955 the collective bargaining contracts for the line driver applicants had been negotiated by the officers of Joint Council 67 which represent the Teamster Locals in Utah and Idaho. Joint Council 67 had received specific authorization to so negotiate from the respective locals, since the locals are, as provided by the

(Constitution of their International, the designated agency for bargaining for their respective members. (R. 0234-7) The employers negotiating unit for the same area was the Intermountain Operator's League. The origin of this bargaining unit reaches back to the 1930's. (R. 0045, 0109, 0115)

Then in 1955 the Western Conference of Teamsters appointed a committee to explore the possibility of negotiating a line drivers contract over an 11 western states area. The Western Conference is not qualified under Federal law to bargain or negotiate for anyone. (R. 0236) Neither does it have any authority to represent a local union in any capacity except as the local specifically authorizes it. (R. 0234-6) However, the said committee appointed by the Conference was encouraged to seek authority direct from the various locals throughout the 11 western states to negotiate for the line drivers in that area. At that time the Committee failed to acquire any authority to negotiate or execute an agreement for the locals. (R. 0212-13) This power was retained by the locals, so that any product of the negotiations by the unofficial committee was sent back to the locals and there acted upon individually by the locals or by those joint councils to whom the locals may have delegated such authority. (R. 0212-13)

Then in 1957 a similar committee again sought from the locals an authority which would permit a unified negotiating of a new 1958 contract for line drivers in the

11 western states. This was an 18 man committee including nine alternates, whose chairman was Homer Woxberg and sometimes hereinafter referred to as the Woxberg Committee. This Committee succeeded for the first time in getting from the locals authority to negotiate for every local in the 11 western states. (R. 0213) *The committee, however, was not authorized to conclude any contract or bind the locals.* (R. 0230, 0270) The result of any negotiations of the Committee had to be submitted to the vote of the line drivers, and all would be bound by the vote of the majority. (R. 0271) Whereas, in 1955 each local still had the right to refuse to be bound by any agreement regardless of how many other locals accepted it, in 1958 a majority vote of all the line drivers in the 11 western states area would bind everyone including even those locals wherein a majority had voted against a negotiated agreement.

In February, 1958, there began a series of meetings between the Woxberg, or Line Drivers Committee (and also known as the 1958 Over-the-Road Negotiating Committee) and the employers committee of the Western Empire Operators Association. This Committee consisted of 23 members including three alternates. The 1955 contract was to expire May 1, 1958, but it had been mutually agreed by all concerned to temporarily extend it pending the outcome of the current negotiations. By May 15 or 18 they had concluded a Master Agreement which was ready for submission to the line driver members. (R. 0223) The Master Agreement dealt with cer-

tain general conditions of employment other than wages and matters closely associated with wages.

Having reached an understanding only as to the subjects included in the Master Agreement, the line driver committees, respectively, for the employers and employees proceeded to the consideration of the various line driver "supplemental agreements" which covered such subjects as wage rates, minimum day, starting time, assignment of runs, layover pay, road expense, etc. for a variety of different industries who use the services of the short and long line transport industry; *but the negotiations as to such completely broke down about May 25 or 26.* (R. 0223)

In an attempt to overcome the serious consequences of a protracted stalemate in the negotiations, a meeting of a small group of employer and employee committee members was held at San Francisco in the Sir Francis Drake Hotel on May 27. These committee members met secretly to explore a possible solution which they hoped they could sell to their respective committees. (R. 0224, 0228) The result of this meeting was the wage settlement proposal of May 27. (R. 0050a)

The extent of the authority of the line drivers committee was to act for the "over-the-road drivers" only. Furthermore, it was not authorized to conclude a contract without first getting an affirmative vote from the line drivers. (R. 0270, 0229-30) Despite their limited authority, the line driver committee decided to submit the May

27 proposal not only to the line drivers for an 11 western states vote, but also to try to get the various bargaining units who represented the terminal employees to accept that part of the proposal which applied to such employees. The part of the proposal applicable to terminal employees only, was suggestive and not tied in or a part of the line driver proposal which was submitted to the line drivers for their approval or rejection. (R. 0117) In effect, the employer line committee was saying: "This is our proposal for the line drivers. Since we have agreed to this you should do what you can to persuade the terminal employees within their various bargaining units to accept our proposals to them."

There was this difference in the authority of the committees: Whereas the Woxberg committee had been negotiating for the line drivers only, the employer committee now appears to have had, or at least it acquired by 8:00 p.m. on May 27, the authority to make an offer for all the terminal employees in the several negotiating units in the 11 western states. (R. 0224) While this may have been the actual authority of the employer line committee, *it was not within the authority of the employee line committee either to negotiate or accept any proposal for the terminal employees. The line driver committee had no more authority than it was originally given and the only power it had relative to the terminal employees was the power of persuasion which in this case proved quite inadequate.*

The May 27 proposal was submitted to the line drivers who voted to accept it. The voting returns from the many locals in the 11 western states came in during the month of June. The line drivers in those locals which registered a minority acceptance were, under the 1958 authorization which they had given the committee, obligated to accede to the majority vote. Such was the case with the sleeper cab applicants in Local 222 where the vote was to accept 60, to reject 87. (R. 0067)

On July 14, 1958, after the vote tabulation was completed, Mr. Woxberg notified Mr. Robert Cutler, Chairman of the Employers Over-the-Road Negotiating Committee, that the line drivers had accepted the May 27 proposal and to proceed to abide by the terms thereof. (R. 0069)

Mr. Cutler, on July 18, replied (R. 0070-2) expressing appreciation for Woxberg's notification of acceptance, but then listed 11 points upon which he desired clarification "before advising all employer negotiating groups."

Then Woxberg in his letter of July 22 (R. 0073-4) emphasizes that there now existed an agreement with the line drivers only, *and that terminal employees were not included in the settlement.*

Terminal Employee Negotiations in Joint Council 67

We shall now state the facts relating to contract negotiation efforts in behalf of the terminal employee applicants covering the same period of time.

From the 1930's negotiations of contracts for applicant terminal employees and their predecessors had been handled independently of the line driver contracts by officials of the respective local unions in Utah and Idaho who negotiated with the employer association known as Intermountain Operator's League. This bargaining unit is at least 20 years old, and in 1955 when a change was attempted as to the line driver negotiating unit, no such change was attempted as to the terminal employee negotiating unit.

But in 1958, an effort was made by a committee appointed by the General Hauling Division of the Western Conference of Teamsters to unify all contract negotiating for terminal employees in the 11 western states within said committee. This committee was chairmaned by John W. Filipoff, who first had to get the various negotiating units to permit the Filipoff Committee to negotiate for them. Having succeeded only partially in this effort (R. 0257)) Filipoff, nevertheless, beginning in February, 1958, tried to get the employers to negotiate with his Committee for all terminal employees in the 11 western states, obviously hoping that if he could get the employers to cooperate, he would be able to persuade all of the locals to cooperate. But the employers refused to abandon their traditional bargaining units as to terminal employees, *and especially adamant was the Intermountain Operators League.*

Exhibit 7 (R. 0039-41) is a letter from Mr. Filipoff to all employer units as shown in schedule A of the

exhibit requesting that the employers negotiate an 11 western states contract for the terminal employees. Exhibit 8 (R. 0042) is Mr. Callister's refusal wherein he says, "The operators whom I represent, commonly known as Local Drayage, desire to continue their negotiations as they have done in the past; that is, on a state level."

Having failed to get an affirmative response, the Filipoff Committee then tried to negotiate for the terminal employees in their traditional units one by one, and did in fact do some preliminary negotiating in the respective local negotiating units at Los Angeles, Portland, Arizona, and Seattle where these units had temporarily authorized that Committee to represent them. (R. 0259)

This effort was foreshadowed by Filipoff's letter of March 17. (R. 0043) On March 20, 1958, Mr. Callister reiterated his position of not abandoning the long established unit in Utah and Idaho and added: "*This has been the method of operation for the past twenty years and we can see no reason at this time for a change.*" (R. 0045)

Mr. Filipoff made further attempts to have his committee recognized which provoked another letter from Mr. Callister to Mr. Filipoff written April 15, 1958, wherein he says (referring, of course, to terminal employee negotiations only):

"I think I have advised you before that it is the desire and intent of the *Intermountain Operators League operating in Utah and Idaho* to

continue their bargaining unit as they have in the past and they do not desire to join with the Eleven Western States in a uniform Master Agreement." (R. 0049)

So, having made the foregoing efforts, and others not here mentioned, without success, the Filipoff Committee decided to abandon its efforts. It therefore, three or four days prior to May 27, formally relinquished back to the locals the authority which it had received, and all of the old negotiating units were thus left intact. (R. 0262-3)

Actually, the terminal applicants in locals 222 and 976 had never given the Filipoff Committee any authority to negotiate for them, and that committee never did negotiate for them. (R. 0181, 0259-60, 0262-3)

The May 27 proposal was never submitted to the terminal applicants. Their representatives had not participated in the negotiation of that proposal, and it did not deal with the major grievance which these applicants wanted to negotiate, which was a plan for the reduction of hours worked per week. (R. 0182)

On June 6, 1958 the negotiators for the established unit of the Utah terminal applicants met in Mr. Callister's office. (R. 0051, 0117-8) The employers submitted their proposed contract as to conditions of work, but without any wage proposals, spaces therefor being left blank. (R. 0052-63, 0118) Further negotiations between these parties took place on June 12. (R. 0064-5, 0118) Then

the next day, June 13, Mr. Callister, of the Intermountain Operators League, sent Mr. Latter, of Joint Council 67, a letter and a proposal as to wages. (R. 0075-S, 0120) This June 13 wage proposal showed increases of 8c, 9c and 10c per hour, respectively, for the various terminal employees listed, whereas, Exhibit 13 "Wage Settlement—May 27, 1958" (R. 0050a) shows a blanket raise of 10c per hour for all such employees. Mr. Callister's June 13 proposal shows a raise for clericals in Utah of 10c, March 1, 1959, whereas the May 27 Wage Settlement shows a similar raise for clericals as early as May 1, 1958.

Thus, employer affirmance is given to Mr. Latter's testimony (R. 0117) that the May 27 proposal "was not intended to be presented to employees employed as terminal employees." At least it was not intended to be presented to the Utah terminal employee applicants, and it "was not presented in this instance to those employees." (R. 0117) We observe that the employers who were responsible for the Wage Proposal of May 27 were more liberal in their offers than the Intermountain Operators League were, which may explain the League's refusal to abandon its traditional bargaining unit for terminal employees.

The June 13 proposal of Mr. Callister's was voted on by the terminal employees in Joint Council 67 on June 17 and 18. They voted to accept the employers' plan for reducing the weekly hours, which was the point in chief contention, but the employees advised the union officers that there should be some increase in hourly wage rates

over those submitted in the June 13 proposal, all of which was immediately conveyed to Mr. Callister. (R. 0182) The League made no further offer till September 5 when an offer of 2c per hour over the June 13 proposal was made. *This was submitted to the terminal applicants on September 14 and they accepted. A contract based thereon was signed October 24, 1958.* (R. 0182)

Although the May 27 proposal for Terminal employees was not submitted to the Utah applicants, it was submitted to some of the other units. The terminal employees in Southern California, within Joint Council 42, voted overwhelming to accept the May 27 proposal. Other units had voted acceptance, but some had rejected it. Because of the relatively large number of terminal employees in Joint Council 42 in the Los Angeles area, and because they "overwhelmingly" voted to accept the May 27 proposal, it became apparent to the employers during the Seattle meeting about June 25 that if the terminal employees had negotiated and voted as an 11 western states unit, as the Filipoff Committee had urged the employers to do, under which arrangement there would have been a "lumping" of all the votes together, there would have been a total and complete acceptance of the May 27 proposal by the terminal employees in the entire 11 western states. (R. 0238-40)

But, at that time it was too late, the votes were already cast and counted, the Filipoff Committee, frustrated from the start, was dead, and "nobody was vested

with the authority in our unions to lump the votes of these bargaining units." (R. 0240) So nothing was accomplished at the Seattle meeting.

Although the line drivers, and those terminal employee negotiating units that had voted to accept the May 27 proposal, tried, following the Seattle meeting, and long before the Sacramento Valley Strike of August 11, to get the employers to sign a contract and thereby formally finalize the offer and acceptance of the May 27 Proposal, the particular employer negotiating units involved refused to do so.

Terminal Employee Negotiations in Joint Council 38

Since the strike occurred in Joint Council 38, we ought to study what happened there and why. There is a considerable stipulated record on the matter. Exhibits 27, 28 and 29 (R. 0273-0291) give a detailed history of the events leading up to the strike by the terminal employees in Joint Council 38. In summation these facts, in part, are:

1. That the appointed officers of Joint Council 38, chairmaned by Wendell J. Kiser, negotiated for a contract for their terminal employees with the California Trucking Association (C.T.A.).

2. That, like Joint Council 67 and the Intermountain Operators League, they had a bargaining history of at least 20 years.

3. That in 1958 they negotiated on the premise of changing the pre-existing contract between them, which this negotiating unit had executed in 1955.

4. That all such negotiations were independent of their line driver negotiations.

5. That their main grievance was that their wage scales were considerably less than those enjoyed by teamster terminal employees in the Oakland or Bay area.

6. That they did not authorize any other person, group or committee to negotiate for them, and, in fact, no one else did negotiate for them.

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