1959

International Brotherhood of Teamsters, Chauffeurs and Helpers of America, Local Unions No. 222 and No 976 v. Industrial Commission of the State of Utah et al : Brief of Respondent

Utah Supreme Court

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

ARGUMENT

POINT ONE

THE FINDINGS, CONCLUSIONS AND DECISION OF THE COMMISSION, THE APPEALS REFEREE AND THE BOARD OF REVIEW ARE SUPPORTED BY THE EVIDENCE.

In our statement of facts we have set forth the events as they occurred, showing those which may be construed as mitigating against the decision appealed from as well as those supporting that decision.

The continued objections of the Intermountain Operators League to the negotiation of new contracts for terminal employees on an Eleven Western States basis are clearly outlined as is the fact that the Utah locals in Joint Council 67 did not give formal power of attorney to the Eleven Western States Local Drayage Contract Committee to negotiate terminal issues for those Utah locals.

If this case is to be decided on the issue of the granting of express powers of attorney to negotiate and the unwillingness of the Intermountain Operators League to negotiate terminal issues on an Eleven Western States basis, the decision appealed from must be reversed and benefits paid to the claimants. Such a position must necessarily disregard the preponderance of evidence which establishes an Eleven Western States bargaining pattern for both the long-line and the terminal workers, the effect of which was to make any possible final agreement in any one area dependent upon agreement in all areas in the Eleven Western States. With few exceptions each of the locals in the Eleven Western States included in its membership both long-line and terminal workers. In some cases the same local bargained for clerical and other employees. The services of all employees were essentially integrated in the operations of the employer. A strike by the terminal employees would have a pronounced effect on the performance of the long-line workers and vice versa. In a large measure each was dependent upon the other.

At the time negotiations started and at the time of the strike of Joint Council 38 the long-line workers were operating

under agreements which were applicable to all long-line workers in the Eleven Western States, and the terminal workers were covered by separate agreements which were applicable to the locals in their respective joint councils (R. 0130). The 1955-1958 terminal worker agreements were negotiated separately by each joint council. With few exceptions the agreements covering terminal workers were effective to April 30, 1958, in case either party gave 60 days notice of its intent of terminating or modifying; otherwise, the agreements continued on a year-to-year basis (R. 0107). The Utah agreements, carried this April 30, 1958, date.

Now we come to the events which took place between February and September of 1958. The Commission representative, the Appeals Referee and the Board of Review properly concluded that those events inextricably involved the parties in a bargaining situation wherein the final settlement of each problem for each segment of workers was more or less dependent upon a general Eleven Western States industry-wide agreement of issues. Not until such general agreement was reached was the work stoppage ended. We do not contend that all of the solutions to local problems resulted in a single uniform settlement. That, of course, was not true. The bulk of the provisions of the Master Agreements, of course, did apply to the Eleven Western States.

In February of 1958, in preparation for an Eleven Western States notice of intent to terminate the 1955-1958 agreement, Locals 222 and 976 (Utah) met in San Francisco with local unions of the Eleven Western States and formulated two Eleven Western States bargaining committees. These meetings were

held as a result of communications sent out by the General Hauling Division, Over-the-Road Division of the Western Conference of Teamsters. These two committees were the 1958 Local Drayage Contract Committee for the Eleven Western States and the Over-the-Road Negotiations Committee for the Eleven Western States (R. 0110). F. T. Baldwin, Local 483, Boise, and Fullmer Latter, Local 222, were appointed member and alternate on the local drayage committee.

The first information which the employers and their organizations had of the formulation of these committees apparently came from letters sent by the Chairman of the two committees on the respective dates of February 3 and February 26, 1958, in which the employers were informed in essence that they would shortly receive notices of intent to terminate the 1955-1958 agreements in the Eleven Western States which had an ending date of April 30. It must be noted that the first information on the intent to bargain for new agreements came not from the locals but from these Eleven Western States committees.

It is obvious from the record that the employers agreed after the long-line committee and employer meeting in San Francisco on February 17-18 that bargaining would be conducted for the line workers on an Eleven Western States basis. There was, however, continued opposition particularly from the Intermountain Operators League to such joint negotiations for pick-up and delivery or terminal workers. This opposition was voiced from time to time in writing by the League. These letters from the League, however, were not acknowledged and

the Eleven Western States Local Drayage Committee Chairman continued to correspond with the Intermountain Operators League just as if no objections had been voiced. One of these letters from the Chairman of the Local Drayage Committee (R. 0043) invited the Intermountain Operators League and other employer groups to attend a meeting in San Francisco on March 13. The employers in the Eleven Western States failed to attend that meeting of the Local Drayage Committee, and subsequent thereto the Local Drayage Committee Chairman notified the employers that if it would proceed to conduct contract negotiations for local unions with the League at such time and place as might be mutually agreed upon (R. 0043). There is no record of such meetings taking place.

The situation was different with the long-line negotiations, and the employers met with that committee starting March 11. Attention is called to the fact that prior to any meeting dealing with direct negotiations of Master Agreements a Master Agreement for the long-line and the Master Agreement for the local pick-up and delivery workers complete in every detail was submitted to the employers with the announcement that those Master Agreements would form the basis for negotiations.

On or about March 25, 1958, the Chairman of the long-line negotiating committee submitted a report of progress to the various local unions, and among other things at that time informed them that the local's particular joint council committeeman or alternate had been instructed by the negotiating committee to immediately prepare the necessary information required by the International Union when giving strike sanction to our local unions (R. 0037).

The long-line negotiating committee in a meeting at Phoenix with the employer representatives in April raised a question on the extension of the line and pick-up and delivery agreements beyond April 30, 1958, and asked the employers to consult and let the unions know their conclusion on the proposed extension of the 1955-1958 agreements during negotiations. This same employer group acting for all the workers, long-line and terminal, on or about May 6 informed the union committee that the 1955-1958 agreements would be extended retroactive to May 1, 1958. Here then we have the first concrete situation in which the employer group (representing all segments of the industries with reference to all types of workers) negotiated on an Eleven Western States basis for both the long-line and the local drayage workers (R. 0219).

During the following month of May the long-line negotiating committee working with the employer committee concluded in principle a Master Agreement. Pursuant to the required procedure that the Master must first be approved for the unions before negotiations of the supplemental agreements were carried out, the Master was submitted to the unions and ratified (R. 1020). At this time there is still no evidence of any negotiations on the Master Agreement with reference to the local pick-up and delivery on terminal workers. Subsequent to the general agreement on the line Master the negotiation on the approximately 35 supplemental line agreements broke down.

At this point in negotiations we have a complete departure from committee negotiations. On May 27 at a secret meeting in San Francisco a Chairman of the line negotiations committee

and one or more representatives of the unions met with a few employer representatives for the purpose of exploring the possibility of arriving at some understanding that would alleviate the stalemate. Out of this meeting came what was generally to be known as the May 27, 1958, Wage Settlement (Exhibit 13a and R. 0224). This May 27 Wage Settlement contained provisions dealing with *both* the *long-line* and *local drayage* workers. Here then was the second concrete example of Eleven Western States bargaining on both the long-line and local drayage workers by a group now which had no legal power of attorney to negotiate for either the long-line or the local drayage workers. This May 27 Wage Settlement was on the following day submitted to some 40 or more employer representatives and the representatives of the local unions and it was approved by these two groups for submittal to the locals in the Eleven Western States for their approval or disapproval.

The agreement was sent to the locals and the long-line workers by a majority vote of the total line membership voted to accept the provisions which applied to the long-line workers. A number of the local unions voted to accept the provisions which applied to pick-up and delivery workers. A number of the locals voted to reject the pick-up and delivery provisions. In Utah the records show that the pick-up and delivery issues were not submitted to the local pick-up and delivery employees for their vote.

The appellants make a particular point of the fact that no power of attorney had been given by the Utah locals for joint negotiations with reference to pick-up and delivery

workers. By now, however, the pattern of joint negotiations for the Eleven Western States on all issues, line and pick-up and delivery, was becoming clear. At the time of the acceptance on May 28 by the employer representatives and the union representatives of the May 27 Wage Settlement, it was agreed that the employer representatives would appear at the Western Conference of Teamsters meeting (June 25, 1958) in Seattle for the purpose of seeing whether or not a final agreement for the Eleven Western States could be arrived at.

In the meantime there were two or three meetings between the Utah locals and the Intermountain Operators League. These took place June 6 to 8. Out of these meetings came a proposal addressed by L. H. Callister for the Intermountain Operators League to Fullmer H. Latter as Secretary of Joint Council No. 67 (R. 0075). In his letter Mr. Callister stated that he was submitting therewith "*a proposal which is in accordance with the recent understanding arrived at between your representatives and the representatives of the employers at San Francisco, California,*" meaning of course, the May 27 Wage Settlement Agreement. (Italics ours). His letter stated specifically, "We refer to such matter No. 6 which is contained in said Agreement and which provides as follows: Utah-Idaho pick-up and delivery to convert to 40 hour week equitably (39 cents)." Here again Mr. Callister is referring specifically to Item No. 6 of the Wage Settlement—May 27, 1958. He continued, "We also refer you to such matter No. 2 which is as follows: 'In all agreements the rates shall be increased by ten cents per hour on May 1, 1958, May 1, 1959 and May 1, 1960.'" Here again Mr. Callister is referring to the Wage Settlement—May 27, 1958 (R. 0075).

The enclosed proposal (R. 0076, Item No. 1) stated that "The new Master Agreement shall cover or supplement all local agreements and in any conflict between the new Master and supplemental agreements (and Masters which apply thereto) the provisions of the new Master shall govern." We find no evidence that there were negotiations at the local level dealing with the Master Agreement for pick-up and delivery workers. Mr. Callister's proposal on behalf of the Intermountain Operators League was accepted in part in that the workers voted to accept the employers' plan for reducing the weekly hours (Item No. 6, Wage Settlement—May 27, 1958). The members, however, advised their representatives that there should be an increase in the hourly rates over those submitted in the proposal (R. 0182). Here then we have the local unions and the Intermountain Operators League, in spite of the absence of any power of attorney with reference to the pick-up and delivery workers, accepting the Eleven Western States Wage Settlement—May 27, 1958, as the basis for further negotiations at the local level. This apparent acceptance of the result of an Eleven Western States proposal, that is the May 27 Wage Settlement and the negotiation at the local level of the strictly local problem, outlines the picture of what apparently was generally happening in the negotiations. These local negotiations had the effect of implementing what had been done on the Eleven Western States basis and did not detract from the general picture of Eleven Western States negotiations.

On June 25, 1958 (after the votes of the locals on the long-line and local drayage issues were tabulated) the employer representatives for the Eleven Western States (it must be

remembered that these representatives appeared for the employers on both the long-line and pick-up and delivery issues) met with the union representatives at the Seattle meeting of the Western Conference of Teamsters. At that meeting they were informed by Mr. Hoffa that some of the terms for pick-up and delivery workers were not satisfactory. In spite of the fact that the majority of the vote of the membership in the locals in the Eleven Western States had approved the long-line proposals of the May 27 Wage Settlement, there appears to have been no attempt at the Seattle meeting to reach a final agreement on the long-line contracts. Instead, the record shows (R. 0243) that most of the meeting time was concerned with the discussion of the problems of the local pick-up and delivery agreements. The employers were apparently arguing that they had been negotiating on pick-up and delivery issues on an Eleven Western States basis and that, therefore, the vote of the local unions on the pick-up and delivery issues which were submitted in the May 27 Wage Settlement should be tabulated on the basis of the vote of the total local pick-up and delivery membership rather than on the basis of the acceptance or refusal by the individual locals. The unions took the position that there had been no agreement at the beginning of negotiations that the local pick-up and delivery votes would be so tabulated and that the Eleven Western States negotiating committees did not on June 25, 1958, have the authorization to so tabulate the votes.

It was apparent to the employers that at least some of the locals would ask for better terms than were contained in the May 27 Wage Settlement. There was no meeting of minds at Seattle.

After the Seattle meeting it was obvious to the employers that they were going to be subjected to pressures by the different locals which would change the pattern of the May 27 Wage Settlement proposal. At the time of the Seattle meeting it was also apparent that there could be no final agreement on the long-line Master and supplements which were negotiated on an Eleven Western States basis until such time as the local pick-up and delivery issues were settled. In fact, at Seattle the employers were advised that if the Wage Settlement provisions of the May 27 proposal were "sweetened" with reference to pick-up and delivery workers then the long-line workers expected to receive that "sweetening."

The unions in their testimony, of course, point out that they were bound by the vote on the long-line agreements and could not enforce such "sweetening." As we will see later, however, when an agreement on the issue of pick-up and delivery workers was affected the long-line agreement was "sweetened." The employers in refusing to formally accept the long-line Master and supplements until the pick-up and delivery issues were settled apparently recognized that there would be an attempt on the part of the unions to obtain better terms either on a local or joint council or Eleven Western States basis. That was made clear to them at Seattle.

Subsequent to the Seattle meeting Local 70 in Oakland, California, went on strike and gained a substantial wage increase over and above the provisions of the May 27 Memorandum (R. 0242). After the successful Oakland strike, Joint Council 38 in California gave notice to the employers in that area that they wanted equality with Oakland (R. 0242-

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